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THE FOLLOWING I8 A COMPILATION AND RECORD OF THE HISTORY
oF CORNELIUS. TIE HISTORY WAS RESEARCHED AND ARRANGED

BY THE CORNELIUS JAYCEES, THE SPECIAL DESIRE TO RECORD .

FOR THE PRESENT AND FUTURE GENERATION THE PAST RECORD OF

CORNELIUS AND IT§ FOUNDING, WAS CREATED ‘BY THE OLDER GEN-
ERATION OF. CORNELIUS WHO DIDN'T WANT THE PAST TO BE FOR-
GOTTCN. IT IS HOPED THAT THIS RECORD WILL INSPIRE PRIDE
AND A SENSE OF BELONGING TO THIS TOWN QITH WHICH WE ARE

ALL ASSOCIATED. WE BELIEVE:THAT‘THE<PAST CAN TEACEH US

" THE WAY .TO HANDLE THE FUTURE AND HELP OUR TOWN NOT JUST

. TO0 GROW, BUT TO GROW INTO THE KIND OF PLACE THAT THE FU~

TURE GENFRATIONS WILL BE PROUD TO RAISE THEIR CHILDREN
IN., WITH THIS WE DEDICATE THIS HISTORY TO THE PAST, PRE-

SENT AND THE FUTURE OF CORNELIUS.

CORNELIUS JAYCEES, 1971



WE DEDICATE THIS HISTORY TO MRS. MOLLIE SHERRILL,
MR.- & MRS, JAKE DOVE, AND MRS. W. W. WASHAM WHO

LIVED THESE MOMENTS,

LIVES OF GREAT MEN ALL REMIND US
WE CAN MAKE OUR LIVES SUBLIME
AND DEPARTING LEAVE BEHIND US
FOOTPRINTS ON THE RCADS OF TIME

FOOTPRINTS THAT PERHAPS ANOTHER
SATILING ©ON LIFES SOLEMN MAIN

A FORLORN AND SHIPWRECKED BROTHER
SEEING MAY TAKE HEART AGAIN,

LONGFELLOW
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‘mont of North Carolina lived on the land, Charlotte had only
1,065 inhabitants 4in 1860, the eng of the agrarian era., The
majority of the People were non slave~owners and the majority.
of slave-ownerss owned but a fey, .4 an who worked his own
land, however Praiseworthy his'enterprize,‘and even though

'In 1850 there ware seventeen Planters in'Mecklenburg who owned
thirty or more slaves, Ten vears later, in 1860, - there were
thirty. 1In the year 1860, these families were as follows (the
aumbers following the names indicate the number of families

of the same name in the 1lisgt) . _Alexander,,Afﬂrgy,mBell,
Caldwell, Davidson (3), Davis, Grier (4), Johnston (2), Kirk-
.patrick,_Lawing) Mills,-Morris, Morrow, Patterson, Parks,
Potts (2), Walker, Wallace.(Z), and White, :

The exact location of all these ig not known, Many of the
homes are piles of rubble, or less; today, even though

Sherman did not mareh through Mecklenburg.',The size of.

some and the isolation of mest made them impractical for later
génerations of the families to maintain, Judging by those -
which remain today, mansions were few, perhaps a dozen at
most, but well kept groundes and comfortable homes were many,
and it must be remembered that the mansion-house itself com~
Prised only a part of the living‘quarters. Kitchens were. ‘
universally detached buildings in the rear; smoke houses (for
meat), storage houses, well houses, carriage houses, andg the
plantation offices, were Seéparate buildings, '

.Thereis little correlation between the size of the big house
and the number of slaves in 1860, This 1s owing largely to
the fact that many sizeable estates of the 1830's and 18407¢
" had been ' more than once sub-divided by 1860, Several of the

of thirty—plus-slave-owners at the énd of the era. TFor example,
the two "Rosedaleg." The older ome, a hais mile south of

Sugaw Creek. Church, was originally known as "Frew's Folly,"

Dr. David T. Caldwell who owned it before the war consildered
himself a physician rather than a planter. The "Rosedale one
half mile west of the present Croft was owned by the Alexanders,
beginning with Dr. Joseph McKnite (son of the noted John MeKnite
Alexander) and .descending to his son Dr. M. Winslow Alexander (an

original Trustee of Dav;dsan.Collage); By 1860, the widow of
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the latter had moved to Charlotte. On this plantation stoogd
one of the really great houses of the county, Four stories
counting the rock basement and fireplaces, four large chin-
neys, and double galleries extending actoss the entire front.
.This place burned in 1967. :

The writer has not had an Opportunity to visit the home sites
+to all thirty of the latge planters of 1860. The plantations

to be described will be those located in the northern part of
the county with a brief. spill-over into southern Iredell. Not
all the gignificant plantations have been located, For example,
the third largest planter in Mecklenburg, according to the 1860
census, was C. L. Torrence. A “Charles 1, Toxrrence" was a
trustee of Davidson College in 1840"s, but no one in North-.
Mecklenburg has been able to tell me where this Planter lived.

1 .

Congregations ~ Owing to tha abgence of villages,‘the planters
customarily identified themselves with a church ctongregations,
whether prominent in the activities of the denomination or

not, The Presbyterians pretty wall dcminated.North’Mecklenburg,

The churches closest to Davidsen when it was opened in 1837
were Bethel and Gentre. Both aided materially in its estab-
lishment, although the most substantial Support came from the

more distant Hopewell farther down the river on the Beattieg'
Ford Road, ' : :

Bethel was organized in 1828, 1Its brick chureh is two miles
west of the center of Cornelius {once Liverpool). on Highway
73, a hundred vards to the right of 2189, 1I¢ is not one of
the original "Seven Colonial Congregations of Mecklenburg" but

Gothic style. ‘The loose rock wall of the graveyard and. hand-
seme boxwood attract much admiration today. Of the plantations
to be described in this booklet, the following owners had
Bethel connections: Williams Patterson and Williams Graham
Potts, both of whom are buried there, William Lee Davidson, II,
James Johnston, Andrew Springs and David Alexander Caldwell,

Walnut Grove (Johnston =~ 8lte) - The closest to Davidson of the
large plantations was that of James Johnston who died February
14, 1860, just before the war. He was the forebear of many' of
the Withers, Sheltons, Stoughs and Browns of Davidson today.
"Walnut'Grove“, his home plantation (he owned several) occupied.
the land south of the tollege and his house stood where RKerr
McGee Farm Center is now, It was a two story, white weather~
board building with two end chimneys ang one story porch. It
Was a relatively small mansion house but there were many out
buildings. Perhaps had he lived longer, he died at fifty-eight,
. James Johnston would have built & more alaborate home., He was
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amply able to do so as he owned about £ifty adult hands in
1860 and.was thus one of the largest slave~owners in the

In spite of their unpretentious residence, the Johnstons

lived well; ¥amily tradition relates of James Johaston

that he was a very large man dresged in- the velvets and

~ 8ilks then appropriate to male attire and used buttons

of gold. To-his many slaves, writes ga descendent, he was
gtrict, No hungry person was ever turned away from Walnut
Grove unfed, though they would be put up for the night in

‘an. euthuilding-rather than in with the family. On the home o
‘Place there was a deer park with g fence fifteen feet .high,

pea fowl-etc. The house sat 1in a beautiful garden,

James-Johaston married’ Ann. Bona, .daughter. of Alexander and’
Catherine L. Torrence., She wag crippled ‘when. an outrider - -- -

heruawdescendant”Wrote: "She waas. a.woman of fine character, - ..
. patient and intelligent, loving all Young people.and in turn
loved by them. A gentlewoman ‘and Bluestocking Presbyterian,
she spent :much.of her time reading," One quaint fireside
custom she“shar&d“RitthndIEW“Jackson&~wife,pRachel“uhich-'

century.

James .and. Ann Bona.Johnston raised fcnr‘children~ta*maturity,
fthree sons and a daughter. 0Of the boys, Patrick and Alexander .
attended Davidson College., The daughter was educated st Salen
Academy as_was customary -with well~to~do piedmont Planters”

- families, TheﬂJahnstansﬁattendedvﬁethel Presbyterian. Church

and Gilead A.R.P. Church, many of them being buried in the
temetery of the .latter. Heirlocme“from."Walnut“Grove" are .. .
presarvedwhy~nxs*‘James?mR.NMcCaldin.(Margaret Oeland) in

ﬂHuntingnnn%_Long Islapd, from -whon nost of. this memoir.was .
obtained. '

Cedar”Grove.(Johnstun}~site»— {One andoa.half'mileS'North'of
Highway 73 on River (Bethel)Church)-Road - now under Lake Notman.-

'Rabert"Hou&ton-lohnstnn,4knawnvas "Hous ton" a ‘'younger brother

°f James Johnston of "Walnut Grove®, was.also-a .planter.aof con-
8iderable meana,.owning-thirty-two‘alaves‘by“the 1860 caunt,.
His homeplace, which he.inherited from hig father, -on the
Beatties' Ford Road, was distinguished by its rows of cedars.

. and was called "Cedar Grove". The house was _later-owned by

‘Mr, John D. Hager, According to Mr, Hager, it was ‘a large . )
log -home, Heatherbﬂazdedwover;-wixh“theqdate 1814 in one ‘of “the '
twq .end -chimneys.. .Although two storieg in height, ‘only the
__firstwfloqr“waSHever finisbed_and 8o windows cut in-the .logs-

. above, There were ‘three.windows on either side of the front
:dﬂar'and~amlong“porch-across.the front and .back of the. house; '
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'The chiaf recollection by snme of the grandchildren of
"Cedar Grove" is the.brassQDrk, tremendous locks and

hinges. The house was pulled down by Mr. Hager inm 1922-23.
This plantation is now under Lake Norman.

Houston Johnston married Catherine, daughter of Barbabus

Torrence. Their two daughters have many descendants locally,

A handsome o1l portrait of their only son is owned by Mrs.
John White Moore of Mooresville, His breif story is told on

a marble monolith in Gilead A.R.P., churchyard:

. Barnabas Alexander
son of .
R. H. and R. . Johnston
2nd Lieut, Co. C -
' 37th Reg. N.C. T,
Born Jan 21st, 1838
and was killed
At the Battle of
Spottsylvania Courthouse
e Virginia
May 12th, 1864 .
Aged 26 yrs., 3 mos., 21 days.

He died as a soldier prefers, if he must fall, in the front
of battle, with his face to the foe, galldntly fighting for
hig country's right.,. His body lies buried on the field of
battle, ensanguined by his blood. Though the ¢ause for whieh
he fought and fell is lost, his memory iz cherished in the -
hearts. of those who loved. hip living, as a martyr for South-
ern honor and liberty, . '

The Milly White Place .- Arother of the relatively large slave
owners lived close to Davidson, according to Mr, John B. Jetton.
This was Mrs. Amelis K. White. Her home was aver near the

gullies on the present Shearer's Chapel Road, but it has been
long gone and along with it Mrs. Amelia and her forty Negroes.

Glenwood - (iﬁtersection of Highway 73 and Sam Furr Road,
Southwest) _ :

This is the Property of James Withers of Davidson now.

In the vicinity of Caldwell S8tation were two homes of un-
usual interest., One of these was "Glenwood"” which belonged
to David Alexander Caldwell and which has recently become
famous (or infamous) as "Holly Grove" om LeGette Blytha's
Call Down the Storm. D.-A. Caldwell built the house in 1830,
- The jacket picture for Mr. Blythe's novel changes the two-

chimneys te a large four chimney brick house. greatly ra-
sembling'“Ruralaﬂiljﬂmouer'ueax“the rivary“‘ﬂnly“;he tovering
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holly trees and other ornamental Paintings remain at "Glen-

wood" (house 1is now a shell) to indicate that it was a place
of some pretentions in the day of its respectability. D. A.
Caldwell was eminently respectable himself., He was an origi-
nal trustee of Davidson College and Dr. J. B, Alexander calls
him "the best cultured man in the county." He was not him-
self college bred but he sent his only son Edward teo the
Presbyterian College nearby. 1To judge from Mr. Blythe's novel
Davidason didn't teach him much, in epite of his impeccable
pedigree (his,gréat—grandfather, the Reverend David Cald-
well, having been the most distinguished divine in the colony),
In the days when “Gleawood" was D, A. Caldwell's home, it was
a favorite resort of Davidson professors and Pavidson students,
The plainness of the exterior of the house belies the generous
proportions of the two frént rooms and the rather elegant
lower turn of the staircase. Mr. Caldwell's only daughter,
5ally, educated at Edgeworth Seminary in Greensboro, was a
lady of rare brilliance and became a noted teacher after the
Confederate War. The portrait of her young husband, Dr.
William Edward White, a Davidson alumnus who gave his life as
a4 surgeon in the Confederate Army, now hangs in the Eumenean:
Literary Soclety Hall on the Campus.

That "Glenwood" proved an oasis for certain lonesome young
intellectuals on the faculty ig indicated in the writings of
Professor Clement D, Fishbufne, who arrived at Davidson in
1855, just out of the University of Virginia, He was twenty-
three years old: o :

visited frequently and found agreeable and plegsant and profit~
able society. I tecall the families of Mr. 'J. Read, of D. A
Caldwell, and of Mr. Brevard (or William) McDowell. Other

“families lived too far off to visit them frequently,

The Reids lived at Mount Mourne and will be noticed under the
section of Centre congregation, The McDowells lived three
miles from Beattiec's Ford, in Iredell County, and were members
of Unity congregation across the river in Lincoln County,.
Robert Irwin McDowell, who married Rebececa Brevard of "Forest
Dell" was a trustee of Davidson from 1844 until 1886. His son
Brevard graduated from the college,

Perhaps Professor Fishburne taught Ed Caldwell, who was not
far from his own Age, and went home to "Glenwood" with hig
student.
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Hickory Grove - gite -~ (Intersection of Highway 115 and old
Caldwell Station, new Mayes Road.

The other large plantation near Caldwell Station was the home
of Andrew Springs. The house stood in site of the present
Highway 115, just north of the Mayes Road to Concord. The
trees and magnificient old boxwoods can be seep today across
the railroad tracks where the Mayes modern brick house occu~
pies the site., The Springs house wasg standing, deserted in
the 1920's and 1930's, At first glance, it appeared to be a-

third story with dormer windows above. Dr, J, Brevard Alexan-
der, the'Mecklenburg historian, 8ays that Andrew Springs "was
noted for being an excellent farmer, keeping everything tidy
and clean, as well as making a profit out of all his crops."
Mr. Springs operated a store and the local post office in
addition to his plantation. One san attended Davidson College,
briefly. His daughter Mary married Major John H. Caldwell,
brother of D. A. Caldwell of "Glenwood," L

Andrew Springs' obituary (he died October 15, 1860) states

that he "possessed a handsome mein, was fixed ipn the pringi« .
Ples and honest and conscientious 1in hig political predictione.
Although a ruling elder 1in Bethel, he ig buried beneath a

handsome monument in’ the First Presbyterian churchyard in
Charlotte.

The Springs' family have a talent for accumulation and pre=-
servation, Andrew's cousins in the town of Charlette and in
upper South Carolina were equally wealthy "before the war',
Many are even richer teday. This 1s one of the families 4n
the piedmont section which belongs hoth to the planter aristo-

cracy of history and the industrial plutocracy of the twentiath
century.

. William Patterson site - {present Outrigger Harbor)} two and
three-fourths miles off Highway 73 on the Jetton Road, 2151,

Some six miles west of Davidson, on the site of the present
Cutrigger Barbor on Lake Norman, lived another family associa-
ted with Bethel Church, This was the homeplace of William
Patterson, owner of thirty-eight slaves in 1860. The Patter~

Davidson, William Patterson moved into. his new home in this

section in 1829, It was a typical two-story weatherboarded

house, with two large end-chimneys, a one story porch across
the front and the usual outbuildings, Thig house burned in

1945, but photographs of it are preserved by Patterson

- descendants, No name ia recollected fopr this~p1antation,
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'though it probably had one, - None of the sons'of”William‘
Patterson attended Davidson College before the war, but
the name of the progenitor of the line 1g Perpetuated on

the faculty roles in his distinguished great-grandson,
Dr. William Patterson Cumming, : :

Walnut Grove (William—Patterson =~ site - (One and a third
miles west. of Highway 21 on Hambright Road-to Patterson-
Potts Road, thencae north to end of the road)

Dr., Cumming's own. grandfather (John, gon of William) lived
in 2 much more imposing hone, ‘His father Purchased for him,
in 1856, the seven huidred and fifty acre plantation and
handsome breik dwelling of the Reverend John Williamson of

original trustee of Davidson College and g2 brother of the
second president of the College, the Reverend Samuel
Williamson., Dy, Sommerville'sg History of Hopewell relates
the follewing: The Reverend John Williamson and his wife
were ploneers in education. When the present Hopewell brick
~church was buile, they erected gz school house in thelir yard
from the old frame chureh and it yag hefe that many of the
young women of the county received their education. A.story
was handed down by the Williamson slaves that Mrs. Williamson
shut the youpg ladies in a dark closet under the stalrway
when they were "naughty,"

The Reverend John Williamson occupied the brick House as a
manse until his death, Thereafter, 1t was the home of hig
brother, Dr, Samuel Williamson, retired president of David-
son College. MNuch that concernaed the early history of the

Presbyterian institution was doubtless discussed and settlad
in the brick manse. :

William Patterson bought the manse and plantation from the
Reverend Samuel Willismson, The Pattersons called the place
"Walnut Grove,"” whether g name inherited from the Williamsons
or thelr own choice ig not known. The name is recorded

- .along with others in this area, in anp 1870's autograph book
which belonged to Miss.Banna'Patterson. .

Older residents of Davidson remember the "Patterson girls™

as elderly ledies in and out of the village some thirty or

Ort¥ years ago. Most of them were born at "Walnut Grove" and
remembered it with affection and pride although it burned

in 1883, The ladies differed widely ip pPersonality, from the
gentle and retiring Mrs. Calvinp Cumming who had served with her
hushand as a misslonary in Japan, to the lively "Migs Nita"

(the Widow Caldwell) who, when in her seventies, could out~
Square dance most of her acquaintances half her' age. Tha
"Walnut Grove" Pattersons attended Hopewell Presbyterian Church,
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The Robert Potts House - (One half mile east of Righway 115
on Smith-Potts Road to Corneliys)

We cannot leave Bethel community without s notice of the
Robert Potts hoeme, a half mile east of the Confederate

statue in Cornelius. Although not on the list of large
planters,'quert Potts built substantially and well, It

is a two-story log Structure, clapboarded over, built in 1811.
The wings are more recent additions. It has been authenti- .
cally restored by Mr. and Mrs. Clifton Smith who have furnish-
ed it with period antiques, some the possessions of the
original owner. Most intriguing is the shadow painting on

the wall, typical of the times but nowhere elge preserved in
this vicinity. The Potts were sterling stock if not as rich
as some of their neighbors. Robert, the builder, was an
elder in Bethel (where he was buried November, 185%) and an
antebellum trustee of Davidson College. He sent his soms to
the Presbyterian institution,Lone of whom Charles Stanhope
Potts, who entered the first clasg, c¢laimed to -have hauled
the first load of brick to build  the College when nineteen
years of age. L :
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Cornelius Presbyterian Church - Corneliys Presbyterian Church
1s the daughter ¢hurch of the Bethel Presbyterian Church which
is located about 2% miles west of the town. The church was be-

gun in 1909 as a Sunday School 1in the days when transportation
was rather difficult,

It was organized into & church with twenty-two (22) charter
members and the Reverend Mr. J. E. Wool came ag its filrst mini-
ster in 19210, The first sérvices were held above the old John
Mayhew store in Cornelius. Reverend Wool was followed by the
Reverend J, €. Clontz under whose ministry the Present bullding
was erected in 1923. Mr. Clontz was followed by W. Ted Smith,
We H. Johnston was the ninister fronm 1936 ‘through 1940. He was
followed by the Reverend J. L, Russell who Berved the church

for two years before he became a military chaplain during the
Second World War. ‘

The Reverend Mr. §, A. Ewart was pastor from 1944 through 1946,
He was followed by the Reverend Ben F. Livingston who setved
the churches during 1947 and 1948, -

. Dr. Ernest Beatty of Davidson College was interim supply until
J. E, Wayland, Jr, took over this Tésponsibility in 1051, Upon
his graduation from Columbia Theological Seminary in 1952, ‘Mr.
Wayland was ordained and installed as minister,

In 1966 a new manse was built beside the church, the 0ld one torn
down, and Mr. Wayland and his family are now living here.

‘Bethel Presbyterian Churech - On a three and a half acre plot
donated by Miss Ann Potts, Bethel Presbyterian Church built itg
first small Sanctuary in 1830, following a meeting of Presbyter-
ians of - the community a few months before who tesolved that a
Christian Church of Presbyterian faith should te organized which

now in use was built with bricks made by hand by church members
and friends. Later a new floor wasg laid, modern pews installed,
and Sunday School rooms buile.

tionas, Bethel had a number of Hegro members.prior ro the Waxr
Between the States. The last of these members, Selina Johnston,
received Iinto the membership -of Bathel‘Church on profession of
faith in 1853, died in 1927 at the age of ninety.
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tors and supply pastors. There were-ll charter_members, four
of which were elders, : B

During its long history Bethel Présbyteriaﬁ-ﬂhurch has had

many achievements to iig credit. Three of its members, the

Enox Sisters, served as missfonaries in the foreign field, The
church ig currently, along with the Cornelius Presbyterian Church,

supporting its own uissionary, Migg Cora Wayland, the slster of
our ministar, .

The preééntsmfﬁistef,-the Reﬁerend-JU . Wayland, Jr, came to
" Bethel Chureh as supply minister in 1951. He was ingtalled ag

minister of the Bethel and Cornelius Presbyterian Churches in
1952, .

Miriisters who ‘have served the Bethel and Cornelius Churches;:

Thomas Espy
Patrick T. Sparrow

5. Williamson

E. D, Junkin

James H, Coleton

.R. B. Anderson

J. M., Anderson

L. K. Glasgow

K. W. Culbertson

J. Horace Lacy

R. A. Webb

R. §. Arrowaod

R. W, Boyd =~

W. B. McWNair

J. M. Grier _

M. E. Sentelle =~ Cornelius GChurch organized here and these

John E. Wool
Bolling Hobson

W. C, Wanchope

R. C. Clont:
Wilson Moore

W, T. Smith

We B. Johnson

J. L. Russgell

Sn A, Ewart

Ben J. Livingston
'J. E. Wayland, Jr.
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Cornelius Chureh of God ~ The Cornelius Chureh of God was
organized on June 2, 1946 from a tent revival on the lot
where Cashion's Syupermarket is now., It was started with
twenty-two (22) members, '

The lot where the church now stands was purchased from Mr.
Columbus Hager. The block chureh was completed and the first
service held on July 20, 1948,

In 1965 a parsonage was built on the lost across from the churéh.

In 1966 a fellowship hall was buiflt with kitchen and dining
area, .

The church now has fifty-two (52) members.

Pastors who have served:

Rev, B, H. McDonald  1946-1948
Rev. G. W. Dyson 1348-1950
Rev. Archie Bunn' © 1950~1952
Rev. Dixie Chambers 19521954
Rev, Reid Huffman 1954~195¢
Rev. J. E. Hayes ' 1956-1959
Rev, I. C. Morris, Sr. 1959-1960 .

Rev. B. L. Bowles - 1960~1964
Rev, W. 8. Williamson 1964~ ‘

The Cornelius Tabernacle - The Cornelius Tabernacle will ob-
serve its thirty—third_anniversary ou August 16, 1971, Rever-
end and Mrs. S. K. Clanton have been the faithful pastors from

Thirty-three years ago, August 16, 1938, Reverend and Mrs.
Clanton came to Cornelius from Charlotte, Worth Carolina with
& burden od their hesrts for a revival in Cornelius. What was
to have been of three weeksg duration, became five weeks and
many decisions were made for Christ, ' '

A severe testing came after the revival had been in progress
for one week. A severe Storm came and the tent was lowered
by the wind and rain, but services continued the next night,
After five weeks under the tent numerous requests were made

a3
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moved to the present theater site, where not only the Sunday
School was well established but regular weekly chureh services
as well, After the sale of the theater building and there

Was no building available, Mr., and Mrs, W. W. White opened

thelr home on School Street for a meeting place, this being
.used for almost three years. During this time » building fund
was started and a lot purchased for the present chutch build~
ing from Mr. and ¥Mrs. Tom Brackett. Building was started immed-
lately with Reverend Clanton and members. of the church assisting
the carpenters in every way possible gg all wanted a permanent
church home. After one month, on July 5, 1941, the first ser-
vices were held in the new building even though 1t was far from
being finished, The late Dr, 4. @, Garr of the Garr Memorial
Church conducted the dedicatory service, -

group and no members werg received into the church, Later,
after numerous requests, the policy was changed and members

charter members are $till active in the work of the church.
Church membetrship is not emphasized ag much, however, as a con=
slstent walk with the Lord.. At present there are 80 members
and scattered across the nation are many who began their
Christian experience by being boxn again ang living for God in
Cornelius Tabernacle. A very active Sunday School has anp aver-
age of 100 per week with departmentalized classes, taught with
spirit fillegq teachers and officers,

When first built, the building was a frame one, located on the
Charlotte-Statesville highway. The years have seen many imp~

brovements. In 1956 the church was brick veneered and a full
basement is the Christian Education department as present with

God has been expecially ganerous with the Cornelius Tabernacle.
During the war years when materials were very scarce for build-

the sanctuary. The air cooler, furnace and Hammond organ were
all donated. These were things the congregation were unable to
purchase, but the Lord supplied them. Phillipians 4:19, The
gifts above all thege are friends and membersg God has given to
make his work a reality in Corneliug, .
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In the last few years, pews have been installed in the sanc-
tuary, carpeting placed on the flaor and the entire interior

Painted. There is no debt connected to any of these, WNow the
church 1s completely alr~conditioned. '

Many nice things c¢ould be sa3id about 80 mapny who have heén
faithful through the years, 1if space permitted, but all honor.
and glory go to the Lord who has been faithful and supplied
the needs over and over again, ‘ - _

While the church grew to the limit of 4its building much prayer
went up that more land might he purchased, This came to pass
as the church was able to buy the lot bordering the church
property. This was developed for parking until the time an
Educational Building can be erected, This has a frontage of 86
feet and an depth of 300 feet. Stil1l the church is free from
debt and for ‘all these things we are a greatful peopla,

As to the government in the church, a Council of four members
and the pastor ag Chairman, meet every two months and work
ocut plans for the advancement of the work. Onece a year an
entire membership meeting is held and plans discussed 'and
passed upon. At this time new counecil members are elected by
the membership. Council members serve for terms of two years
duration, ' : -

The Ladies Auxiliary of Cornelius Tabernacle was organized many
years -ago and have done much to enhance the beauty of the church
by the many gifts they have donated such as the pulpit for the
sapctuary, the Bible for the pulpit, a generous offering on tha
carpet and numerous other gifts. Their meetings are held month-
ly and their work is outstanding, not only in the church, but

to many in the community and to migsionaries in other countries,

One year ago the congregation voted, without one dissenting -
vote, to become 4ffiliated with the Church of the Foursquare
Gospel Intermational. This bacame a reality in December 1970.
The name of Cornelius Tabernacle became Cornelius Foursquare
Church and the new sign has been ersected, '

The congregation felt by doing this i1t weuld have a wider
field to spread the Gospel, as the missionary program of the
Foursquare Gospel 1s in every country that ever had an open
door for the Gospel. There are over 800 missicns stations
that have been built arocund the world.

Reverend and Mrs. Clanton are still the only pastors that the
church has had, but at their tetirement, the Foursquare Organ-~
ization in co-operation with the congregation will supply
pastors,
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It seems that 1t aly began when the reof of the Hopewell Baptise
Ghureh needéd repairing. Mogt of the members felt that they
eould with greater Profit build a peyw building which would be
closer to their homes. ‘Mainly -under the leadership of A. b,
Swett. definite plans began to take shape, Under the suparvi-
sion of the brothers R, D, and C. B: Mooney, who were contractw
0rs in this afea, there was erected the building which now
stands on Catawba Avenue. ' .

There seem to be no extant recotds of that first menbership,
It is cexrtain, however, that thiere were lesg than 50 members,
probably less than 40, : :

The first pastor was the Reverend. C, M.'Murchison, who stayed
only for a short while. Along with Reverend Murchison, mentien
should be made -of Reverend L, R, Pruitt, who was for mainry vears
a pastor in Charlotte, Reverend Pruite dig conasidetrable work
1 helping the Cornelius chuyrch getl started. It was hea who
selected the loeation for the ¢hurch. : '

Mr. Murchison was followed hylw. A+ Hough. He was succegded b?
Reverend T. L. Cashwell. His pastorate ended December 25, 1921

Mrs. Cashwell was followed by Reverend James Brown who served
until December 31, 1924, : -

Next in line was &. C. Taylor. He reslgned ag pastor in March
1930. fThen W. W. Rimmer was callad, The date of his resignation
was May 7, 1939, The next paster was Reverend Homer Goode, who
stayed ‘at Cornelius for four years., 71t was during that time
-that the basement was dug and several Sunday School Yooms and g
kitchen were built.

Reverend Goode wag followed by Reverend Paul D, Drum. He stay-
ed for two years. Thg next two pastors Zeb Baker and . R, &.
Bennett remained only a short time at Cornelius.

When Reverend James Bulman became Ppastor in 1949, the church
membership was around 100, He remained Pastor until the early
part of 1955, William Neal Baker took over the pastoral duties
on Qctober 1, 1955 ang remained until April 1966, Ground break-
ing for a new pastorium was held 1n August 1963, The Bakers '
-moved into the new home on March 23, 1964, Dedication and open
house for the pastorium were held Sunday, April 26, 19g4,

Reverend Denmnis M, Larkins became pastor in January 1967. The
church membership at present is 273,
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Mount Zion Methodist Church - Cornelius, N, C. - Mount Zion
Methodist Church at Cornelius, N, C, ig in the upper part of
Mecklenburg County, about 18 miles north of Charlotte, and
a mile south of Davidson College, With a membership of 800,
it is the largest rural church in the Western North Carolina

‘Conference, and 1s thought to be one of the largest in the
South, ) : ‘ .

The first record we have in connection with this church is on
March 24, 1828, Alexander Warsham deeded g tract of land to

David George, Osborn Jetton, Job Cannon, John Kerr and Andrew
Moore, Trustees of Zion Episcopal Church for the purpose of
building a church. This building was on what 1is now Highway

73, about one half mile southeast of Bethel Presbyterian Church.
It is said services were held under a brush arbor, with a "stand"
being erected for the preacher, Remains of the first cemetaery
"can be seen there. The congregation remained there seven years,

The congregation moved from the old site to the present one in
Cornelius on Highway 115, and there is a record of a contract
made by one, James Black, February 15, 1835, to build a weather
boarded church building 25 x 35, on part of this present site
given for this purpose by Alexander Johnston, The contract
price was $90.00 for all labor, the church to furnish the
materials. An additional two and one~half acres {which is the

lower part of the old temetery) was purchased from W. A. Black

This building served until 1870 whep a second building was
erected, '

A second building was erected in 1870, 1In 1878 lamps with re-
flectors were installed, candles being used to light the church
previously. In the same year the church was sealed and a
gallery was constructed., It was not until 1890 that an organ
was placed in the church, Previously a tuning fork was used

to get the singers at the proper pitch. It ttok three years

to build this church, -and the bullding was dedfcated in 1903,
The site for that sanctuary, and the present one, was acquired
by deed from P, A, Stough, for seven and one-half acres Feb-

ruary 18, 1902. The brick to build this building was made
nearby. : ‘

After building this church, several additions and alterations
were made. In 1919 a gallery was constructed inside the church
and the rear part was partitioned in Sunday School rooms.

In 1942 a new edvcational building was built adjacent to the
rear of the chureh,
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What we knew as the "old church", completed in 1902 and dedi-

cated in 1903, was abandoned August 15, 1954, a new church
being erected and first service ‘held August 22, 1954,

In 1945 2 new parsonage of.brick,'was bullt on the front of
the church property, :

On August 20, 1952, a new chureh was begun. It.consisted of

a2 Sanctuary with full size basement., This was the fifth build-
ing for the Methodist members of Mt, Zion - the fourth build~
ing on the present slte. Sloan & Wheatley of Charlotte, were
the architects, Jack M. MeGee was the general foreman on the
job. Reverend F. W, Kiker came to Mt, Ziom in the fall of
1949, and it was under hisg leadership that the new building was

undertaken and completed, the firsgt meeting being held in the
church on August 22, 1954, '

The building committee for the above church was ; A.VD. Cashion,
Chairman, H. R. Smith, Co-chairman, Keith R, Howard, Miss Mary
Sherrill, Ben A. Washam, B. §, Sherrill, Sr, and Otis Wally.

On May 24, 1959, the churech mortgage for the new church was
burned during a special dedication service held in the sanc-
tuary at 2:15 P.M, BReverend J. C. Grose was pastar of the
church at that time, and. hls ‘topic at the 11:00 o'clock
service was "Builders for Eternity", This Sunday was also the
annual Homecoming' Sunday.

The dedication seérvice was conducted by Dr. Walter .J. Miller,
District Superintendent of Methodist churches in the Charlotte
Digtrict of the Methodist Church, led the service and members
of the .official board of Mt. Zion and Trustees of the church
participated, ‘

The plans were for a'two~stofy Educational Building containing
approximately 16,000 square feet of floor Epace. The structure

‘was designed'to matech the eXxisting fanctuary, which was built
in 1951, .

The building was completed in December 1961, It ig constructed
of brick, conerete blocks and steel, and is completely air~
conditioned, as was the church. The building houses the pastors
study, an office for the Director of Christian Education and a
libdbrary. Another featurs of the building is a parler, complete
with kitchenette,rfor_committaemmeatings.‘ :

The kitchen in the soclal hall in the Sanctuary was remodeled
to accomodate cafeteris style serving,

‘Sloan & Wheatley were the architects fgr'the'Educational Build-
ing. G. E. Vinroot Construction Company did the building.

A" covered passage tonnects the neyw building with the sanctuary,
The Sunday School began using the building in Januwary, 1962,

1
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Pastors who have served Mt. Zion Hethodist Church for various
lengths of tinme for the past 95 Years,

1872 - 1878 Rev. T. p, Triplett
‘1878 - 1881 Rev. Ji T, Harris
1881 .- 1883 Rev, We P. Williams
1883 - 1887 npg. J. W. North
1887 1888 Rev. L. E. Stacey
1888 -~ 1892 Rev. M, A, Smith
1892 -~ 1893 Rev. J. 0. Shelley
1893 - 1894 »pr. Keilth

Rev., J. E. England

1

1854 -~ 1895 Rev, J. E. Gay
1895 ~ 1896 Rev. J. 8. Nelson
1897 - 1898 Rev. Ira Irwin

1898 ~ 1900 Rev, C. M. Campbell
1902 ~ 1904 . Rev. 7. M. Vestal
1904 -~ 1907 Rev. W, H., Willis
1907 -~ 1908 Dy, Dan Atkins
1908 .~ 1909 Rev. §. T. Barber

1910 - 1911 Rev. J. W. Jones
1911 ~ 1912 Rev. ¢, A, Woods
. ~ "Rev, T. Paris
- 1913 - 1914 Rev. C. M. Pickens
1914 - 1915 Rey. T, J. Ogburn
1915 - 1917 Rev., E. M. Hoyle
1917 - 1918 My, Page, Rev. J, Green
Rev. T. A. Grose Rev. N. G. Allen
1918 - 1920 Rev., W. B. Davis '
1920 ~ 1922 Rev. T. C. Jordon
1922 - 1925 Rev. J. H. Bradley
1925 - 1927 Rav, G. W. Vick

1927 - 1929 Rev. 2. A. Swarangin -
1829 - 1931 Rev, H. H. Robbing ‘

1931 - 1933 Rev, W. A. Barber

1933 - 1937 Rev. E. M, Avett

1937 ~ 1939 Rev. H. c, Sprinkle

1939 - 1945 Rev. w. s. Smith

1945 - 1949 TRev, B, Shankle

1949 - 1956 . Rav. F. W. Kiker
1956 - - 1958 Rew. ¢. E. White

1958 - 1962 Rev. J. C. Grose, sr,
1962 ~ 1967 Rev. D, G. Bridger
1967 - Rev. P. H. Gibbs
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J. B, CORNELIUS - The following is a brief glimpse into the
1ife of the man for whom our town was named.

Due to the years that separate his time from us, we are un-
able to do justice to the fine gentleman of long ago years,
.but are sure that as the history of Cornelius unfold you
will be more and more aware of the significance of his life
in the growth of a town he loved so much.

J. B, Cornelius was the son of Jessie Cornelius and Margaret
Cornelius. He was born September 1, 1833 and died COctober
23, 1914, On August 7, 1859, he married A. E., Sherrill.

Mr. Cornelius was originally from Iredell County, North
.Carolina. His homestead still stands at Highway 150 out
of Mooresville toward DPenver.

He had one eye, lost the other as a boy plowing. He lost
a brother in the Civil War. He himself was not inr the war
bacause of only one eye. o

Mr. Cornelius was an-elder at Mt, Zion Methodist Church,
There is a J. B. Cornelius Foundation, Inc,Frank Sherrill,
President, with currently'’sixty girls involved with college
scholarships. - ‘

He sent a missionary to Japan for five years.

He also gavé $10,000 to childrens home in Winston Salem, N.C,
The picture on the cover of this history is in possession of
Mrs. Molly Sherrill. It was painted by '"Miss Courtney" of

Lenoir, N. C. It hung in "Cornelius Hall" of Davenport
College, Lenoir, H. C. until 1942,
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Richard Johnston Stough - Co-finder with Mr. J. B. Cornelius,
of the town of Cornelius, was hornp in Cabarrus County in 1844,
His father, Mr. Alfred Stough, moved the family to Mecklenburg
before the war, Through his nother, Elizabeth MeClure, he was
a descendant of Matthew McClure, a signer of the Mecklenburg
Declaration of Independencea.

Dick Stough'grew up on the farm and on July 8, 1862, at the
Mt. Zion Church ground, he volunteered in the Confederate
States Army. He served as corpaoral in Company K, 56th Regiment

of North Carolina Iroops. Many young men from the Mooresville,_
Davidson, Huntersville and Mt. Zion sections served in this
company. - They were trained at Camp Mangum, Raleigh, North
Carolina, and then were sent to guard the railroad from Weldon
to Richmond. ©On Mareh 25, 1865 the company made the charge in

front of Petersburg, Virginia, Since they were qutnumbered by

and hungry but Mr, Stough and hig future brotheruin-law, Mr.

I. W, Barmett, walked the last twenty miles to their homes near
Cornelius., Thesge experiences, horrible as they were, never-
theless cemented all these young veterans in bonds of friend-

ship that grew Stronger through the Years and endured uyntil
death, - : '

After returning home, Mr, Stough, farmed for awvhile and then

went to Davidson and openad a general store. - In 1874 he married
Miss Mary Ann (Mollie) Johnston who died in 1880 leaving one son.
Pat Stough, who for many years, until his death ip 1922, was
Seécretary and treasurer of the Cornelius Cotton Mill,

After his wife's death, Mr, Stough became very concerned with

the education of the children in the Mt, Zion section. There

was no primary school Very near and 1o secondary school where

the young people could be prepared for college, He attempted,
.along with other interested parents, to build an academy., This
did not materialize go he and Mr. w, A. Brown decided to build

& one room school beside Mt, Zion church., 1In 1885 the school

was built and Miss Emma Thompson of Davidson was hired to teach.
She had attended Lander €ollege 1in South Carolina and the Univer-
eity of North Carolina. This was the first "free school' in

what 1s now Cornelius, The age of the pupils ranged from Mollie
Barnett (Mrs, '¥. C. Sherrill, Sr.,) who was five years old, to

Dr. W. W. Washam, who was about sixteen and preparing for college,
This was in 1885, and today, 86 years later, three pupils are
still living, Mrs. F. C. Sherrill, Sr. age 91, Grace Barnertt

(Mrs. J. A. Dove) age 95, and Mr. J. A. Dove, age 95,

[
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Others'attending-were: Bona White, Nat & Ernest Washam, Tom,
Bob, & Jim Readling, Pat Stough, Charles & Haywood Barnett, -
Maggie Mock (Mrs. Perry Goodrum), Lizzie Mock (Mrs. John
Alexander), Rose, Julia & Sam Thompson, Dr. Sam Withers and
Dr. Jinm Withers, Jim, Ed & Dan BRost, Rose Smith & Will Mock.
This is not a complete list, just the ones remembered.

In July, 1886, Mr. Stough created an educational problem for
the new school.,. He married the teacher, however, the school
continued with another teacher,

Mr. Stough had been buying cotton from the farmers in this
section and shipping it to the.smgll_cotton mills that had

Liverpool by the farmers and railroad men. Soon he, with Mr.
J. B. Cornelius started a little store that was known as

Stough Cornelius Company. This grew and continued in operation-
until 1941, .

About 1890, Mr, Stough, hisg brother~in~law, Mr. ¢. W. Johnston,
and Mr. J. B, Cornelius decided to build a cotton mill here.
This would provide jobs and vages for the farmers and their
families. Tn addition to providing a market for the cotton
raised in this section. The mill was incorporated ip 1891 and
stock sold. Mr. Cornelius was president and R, J. Stough sac~
Yetary and treasurer. In a few years Mr., Pat Stough became
Secretary and treasurer and contknued untdl his death in 1922

‘workers, The briek for the very first part of the mill were
made in the lot North of Mrs. F. C. Sherrill's present home,
Mr. Pat Stough was followad by another of R. J. Stough's sons,
J+ €. Stough., In 1944 the mill was sold to Ix Company and then
to the pPresent. owners, Reeves Brothers, Although he continued
to be interested in the Cornelius Cotton Mills, Mr, €., W.
Johnston woved to Charlotte and became 4 successful mill owner,
having plants at Rock Hill, South €arolina, Huntersville and
Highland Park, Charlotte, North Carclina,

Mr. Stough served on the school board for many years and the
official board of Mt. Zion church. Early in the 1900's a beau-
tiful brick ganctuary was built to replace the first bhoard

church and a large school building took the rlace of the one

room building., Cornelius became an incorporated town about

- this time and honored Mr. Cornelius by taking his name. Ip’

1903 Mr. Stough built his home just north of the church and

lived there until his death. A bank was started with the

first directors being J, B. Cornelius, J, u. Dove, F. C, Sherrill,
R. J. Stough, P, A. Stough and T, g, Willfamson.
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During all these years NMr. Stough maintained a close rela-

tionship with his forher army comrades. He attended reunions
of the United Confederate Veterans in many cities of the Con-
federacy. The last one he attended was at Memphis, Tenn. in

1924, He was eighty (80) years old but he enjoyed it as much
as all the others,

this section. He also dreamed of eérecting a monument here
honoring the soldiers of the confederacy. His bride, a
‘daughter of Lt. §. §. Thompson, was just as enthusiastic and
after that mast of the. reunions were held at Mt., Ziom. Then
in 1900, Mt., Zion church grounds were decided upon as. & perma-
nent reunion place and it was held on a Thursday in August
every year for more than 50 years, Long after the last confed-
erate veteran died the young veterans of World War I continued
the reunion. Each year Mrs. Stough would put a Confederate
Flag on the graves of each of the forty-five old soldilers
buried in Mt, Zion cemetery and she, with the other ladies of
the community, would prepare a dinner for the veterans and
thelr friends. It was glways bountiful and delicious., TUsually
there was a speaker. Always there were refreshments stands

and carnival rides and novelty stands. There was always a band
econcert in the early days and the old soldiers formed a line and
marched over the grounds to the tupe of "Dixie." As the years

. passed the line grew shorter, the steps faltered and the "Rebel
" Yell" sounded weaker, but they still could tell the tales that’
fascinated all the youngsters,

The monument that Mr, Stough had dreamed of became areality in
1910, It was erected through the combined efforts of the veter-
‘ans and the entire community. Five hundred and eighty~five peo~.
ple contributed individually while hundreds of others gave their
time and talents .through box suppers, fiddlers conventions, plays,
ball games and any other way that money could be reaised. 1In

1907 .the first three slabs of granite were unloaded from a flat
car which had been stopped directly in front of the monument site,
The railroad authorities allowed one hour for unloading and many
of -the men of :the town helped, Ip 1908 and 1909 the other sec-
tions were delivered and put in place and on August 6, 1910 came
the biggest reunion celebration of them all., Judge Armistead
Burwell made the address and little Miss Feriba Stough, young-
est daughter of R. J. Stough, pulled the eord that unveiled

the monument to a cheering crowd of about 6,000 people.
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Mr. Stough's hopes for erecting a public library on the mon-
ument plot were naver realized but through the vears the far~
mers company was organized to gin the cotton of the neighbor-
ing farmers and sell fertilizer, A furniture factory was buiit
and operated for a number of years. A drug store owned by Mr.
Stough was successful for some years. Two sons served in
World War I, s. T. Stough (Tush) with 113th Field Artillery,
30th Division and Lt., Mike A. Stough, Instructor in the Fort
S11ll School of Fire. Hig three daughters taught school.
Mellie (Mrs. R. g, DuRant) taught at Cornelius as did Miss
Feriba Stough and Lucy (Mrs. Brice J. Willeford) taught at
Kannapolis.

On February 4, 1926,_Mr.'8tough died at his home. He was great-
ly mourned by his family, the community and his old comrades.
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DR, WILLIAM W. WASHAM - The Cornelius Jaycees pay special
tribute to one of our beloved citizens who has left our

midst but whose memory remains in the hearts of the citizens
of Cornelius who he so devotedly served for so many years.

The following are excerpts from the Mécklenburg Gazette and
can best tell the warmth and compassion of one of Cornelius’
leading citizens.

DR. WASHAM, FAMILY DOCTOR SERVED NORTH MECKLENBURG COMMUNITY
MANY YEARS,

'The farm boy who walked seven thousand miles to become
a beloved family physician was Dr, W. W. Washam.

He was born Qctobar 18; 1870,‘in & log cabin on a small
farm in Iredeil County, where he lived until he was six~
" teen months old when his father sold this farm and

bought ancther one in Mécklenburg County, 2% miles west
of Davidson..

Here Dr. Washanm grew up, helping with the chores and
attending schools of the day and working on the farm,
Sundays the family attended services at Mt Zion Metho-
dist Church in Cornelius where he joined at the age of
10, .

The Pattern of life was pretty much the same for him
for a good many years ~ working on the farm, attend-
ing Sunday School and golng to school a few monthsg in
the winter,‘spending an occasional night with a friend.
Poce in 3 great while he vould go to Chariotte when
his father ang several neighbors would haul cotton to
the market. The trip to Charlotte would bae an event
that was anticipated with great pleasure-and talked
about a long time afterwards, ' To make the trip in
wagons required at least two days, and one night was
spent on the roadside by a big camp fire,

The years passed and as Dr, Washam reached manhood the
question arose, what to do and what'profession he should
devote his life, From time to time ‘he would go to the

that day. Hundreds of people from far and near attended
-the commencements in the 0ld days.

The North Carolina Mediceal College was then at Davidsgon
and somehow he felt the urge to study medicine_and glve

his life in service to-humanity. He was 24 years old
and had not finished high school, so he entered the
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Davidson academy and finighed high school, and at the
age of 27 he entered the ¥. C, Medical College and
studied physics and chemistyy at DavidaonACollege

at the same time, For.seven years he walked 2% miles
from his home to the college,

At the 1901 Davidson commencement he received the great-,
ly coveted diploma, although he did his first medical
practice 4n the summer of 1900 by taking over the’
practice of the late Dr, Elmer Wilson in Catawba County,
while Dr. Wilson went to Louisvilile, Ky. to attend an
old soldiers’ reuntion and visit friends.

After graduation he continued to live at the old home

place and he began riding horseback to see his patients,
The old saddle ig still in his Possession in Cornelius.
In 1902, at the Ssuggestion of the late Dr, g4 Caldwell,
another physician in North Mecklenburg at the time, the
young Dr. Washam moved hisg office and home to Cornelius

and invested in »a buggy and became gz horse and buggy

The general Practice of medicine, which in those days
coverad everything from obstetrics to teeth extraction,
was all in a days work, and he took care of each case
to the best of his abllity, He always went wherever

he was called, dispensing his own medicine at first,
later a drug store was established in Cornelius where
brescriptions were filleqd,

am
o all with whom he .came in contact and the twink;e
in his eye and affable manner often did more for his
Patient than the medicine,

During the nearly fifty vears of busy Practice, he has
delivered thousands of bables. Often a young mother
will come in and say that my grandmother said vou

were the best baby doctor she has ever Seem, 80 I want
-¥You to look after ny .baby,

On his 85¢th birthday, Dr. Washam retired from active
practice, but sti11l feels the urge to serve humanity,
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He has been a member of Williame Masonic Lodge at
Cornelius for over 60 years, and' a member of the
Scottish rite bodies for years. He maintains a
strong interest in current events, and always enjoys
having old friends drop by for = friendly chat, He
and Mrs. Washam live quietly at their home on Catawba
Avenue, in Cornelius, and as citizens pass his door

many of them remark that Dr, Washam was the only doctor
they had ever known.

Pr. Washam passed away on June 2, 1958, His wife ds still
living and resides at their home in Cornelius.
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:Cﬁaracter.éketches of Dr, W, Ww. Washam by Rober: T. Ho&le
July 29, 1949 o .

We hear a lot ahout s80clalized medicine and government
regulation and direction of health, but as far as I'm
.concerned I'm sti11 for that superb servant of all -
the good old Family Doctor, '

We who were brought up in the small town, look back
to the days when the doctor was the best friend any
family had. . Everyone loved him, Including the children.

~ the community who called upon him. Many times he .
Sacrificed his own comforts that others might live
longer. He was never too busy to answer a call,

Most of his pills that he gave were relatively harm~
less., You see, he understood human nature ag well

a8 human mechanism. Often po more than understanding
vas needed, and he had that aplenty. He was wise and
and tactful. He wag Patient with a11 types of human
beings., When he was able he covered his town and

This doctor I'm-telling you about wag a genuine psycho~
logist, He carried his best medicine in his brain and
in his heart, Childrer loved him and got well pronto
after his call. When he was able to make visgits to

his patients, storms, muddy roads, long distances and
lncenvenient hours meant nothing to him. When babies

Perhaps by now you have guessed the doctor of whom I
have spoken, He ig Dr. W. W. Washam of Cornelius,

When he visited my childhood home he would come with a
twinkle in his @ye and would in 3 soft, encouraging
manner that had more effect oftimes than the medicine
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. -Dr. Washam is actiwve in community affairs; he is a
-Mason and a member of Mt Zion Methodist Church and
despite his physical condition attends church reg-
larly. He still carries on the practice of medi- .-
cine at his home in Cornelius, but is unable to
‘make.calls, Dr, Washam is still interegted in peo-
ple- and things and never fails to give vou his
friendly smile in the same compassionate manner
that I remember as a child. When I saw him a few -
days ago.with Mre. Washam at the auditorium at
Lake Junaluska, it brought back to me in a very
forceful manner my memories of him in my childhood
days. So here's to you, Dr, Washam, a2 grand doc-
tor, a true friend and faithful citizen.
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Frapk C. Sherrill - Frank C. Sherrill, son of Jeptha A and
Rachel Robinson Sherrill, was boxn.May 10, 1871, on a farm
west of Mooresville, North Carolina near Sherrills Ford. 1In
1900 he and Miss Molly Barnett were married, '

Frank Sherrill attended Iredell county schools and Oak Insti~
tute in Mooresville, North Carolina, then went to Trinity
College, now Duke University, Durham, North Carolins where

he finished his junior year. He failed to complete his college
education as Mr. J. B. Cornelius, his uncle, wanted him to
become an associate in the Stough Cornelius Company. Frank
bought one guarter interest in this company. '

Stough Cornelius Company, now Turner Hardware Company, was a
large country store that sold everything from groceries to :
clothing., 1In addition, they bought and shipped produce brought
in by the farmers. Due to the cotton market at the Stough .
Cornelius Company, the farmers called it Liverpool..

As business progressed a post office became very necessary

as the mail had to be carried from Davidson each day. At a
meeting of the towns people, Frank wag chosen, along with Rever-
end J. 0, Shelly, minister of Mt., Zion church, to go to Wash~
ington and plead the case. Reverend Shelly had some influen~.
tial friends in Washington during this Republican administra-
tion. :

April 1899, the post office waé éstablished-for Cornelius,
located in the Stough Cornelius Company store, with F. C.
Sherrill the first postmaster, .

The Bank of Cornelius was establishéd in March 1903 wi;h J. M.
Dove, President and F. C. Sherrill, Cashier. After the death
of Mr. Dove, Frank was made President and J«. T. Beard, Cashier,.

F. C. Sherrill was a stockholder in Cornelius Cotton Mills and
Presidaent of the Gem Yarn Mills, a mill he helped to organize,
until his death on July 23, 1942,

From the time Frank came to Cornelius he took great interest
in the education of the children in the community and served on
the school board for a number of years.

When he came to Cornelius he moved his membership from McKendrie
Chapel to Mt Zion Methodist Church whare he taught Sunday
School and was a member of the official board for many years.
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GEM YARN MILL HISTORY - The Gem Yarn Mill opened in 1905,
was incorporated in 1907 and closed in 1962.
' Its ‘board of officers were F. Q. Sherrill, J. B. Cornelius,
T. 8, Williamson, P, A, Stough, R, J. Stough.

In 1905 they started with forty five (45) employees and
during their peak years between 1941-1946 they employed
-one hundred fifty (159). . . .

The original building was built by R, D. Mooney and Company

of Davidson, North Carolina., A second building was eracted

in 1918 by W. E. Potts of Davidson, North Carolina.
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Cornelius ~ Cornelius, youngest of Mecklenburg's five in-
corporated towns, wae born in 1893 but not incorporated .un~
til 1905. The story of its origin is given in an atticle
by Fannie Lou Bingham in the Charliotte News of September
27, 1935, :

farmers from up and down the Statesville road and from Lin~
coln County. The Lincoln County folks came across the Cataw-
ba River and up the river road which entered the Statesville
Highway at a point which is now the middle of Cornelius.

Two business firms were thriving at Davidson, the R. J. Stough
Company and Sloan Brothers. FEach firm furnished farmers on
open account and had its own scales and did its own welghing
of cotton. When Charlotte, the county seat, appointed a town
welgher, an agitation began at Davidson for a similar offi-
cfal. Some thought it was a waste of money to pay for weigh-

honest weighing; R. J._Stough Company was in favor of the

buyer doing his own weighing, and Sloan Brothers in favor of
the town wedigher,

" A hot election was held. The Stough Company lost and a town
weigher was hired, Thereupon, Stough went just outside the

- Davidson town limit, where the river road met the Statesville
Highway, and built a gmall frame buflding, placing scales in
the back yard. He retained his place of business at David-
son, but did his weighing outside of town.

and- hired a “right smart boy," €. w. Johnston, to clerk for
hinm. (That right smart boy" turned out to be the C. W. Johnston
. Who headed Highland Park Mill apd other mills and who built

the 17 story Johnston Buflding in Charlotte.,) Stough and
Johnston conceived the idea of having a mill nearby seo that
cotton could be converted into cloth right there. They didn't.
have enough money to spare but knew a man who did, Joe
Cornelius of Davidson. Socon the cotton mill opened and the
town took its name from the Principal stockholder who spparent-
1y never made his home there but whose widow, Ann Sherrill,

did locate at Cornelius after his death,. ‘ :

The first post office was opened November 17, 1899, with TF. ¢,
Sherrill as postmaster. Before that, Jacoeb Alonzo (Jake}
Dove rode a bicycle to Cornelius where he picked up the out-
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going mall for the nearest post office, which was at Caldwell
Station, three miles away. At the same fime he put the
Cornelius mail in a tin tub at the mill where each persom .
would go through it for his own mail, -

Among the early settlers of Cornelius were the families of
Robert Pitts, Douglas Weddington, Frank Brown, Andy Hall,
‘Allison Black, Jack White, Charles Readling, and Isaac Bar-
mnette. The first local school was opened about 1906 with
Mrs. Emma Thompson Stough as the first teacher, The monu-
ment in front of Mt. Zion Church, honoring 44 Confederate
dead, was unveiled in August 191Q,

~ From the early beginning has developed by 1960 a progressive
little town, proud of its .schools, churches, clubs, publie
library, and business firms., Its altitude 1s 833 feet and
the 1960 census gives it a population of 1,444,

Mayors of Cornelius, ¥Yorth Carolina:

J. B. Proctor . ~1905-1906
Lawrence Hager : 1907-1910
John 8. Sossamon 1911-1912
Alec Little 1913-1914
F. €. Sherrill, Sr. - 1915~1916
Joe A, Sherrill 1917~1918
J. B. Readling 1919~1924
W. L. Puckett 1925-1926
W. E, Long . 1927-1934%
H. K, Sossamon 1935-1937
L. B. Honeycutt 1938-% yr.
G. E, Sweet - 1939-1946
J. E. Baxter _ 1947~1948
G. E. Sweet ' 1949-1950
K. R. Howard 19511956
B, 8. Sherrill ©1957«1959
Ben Byvers . 1960-1966
Sam James 1966-1969

Wesley Rood 1970~
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Our Mecklenburg Heritage 1955 by'Charlotte'Ivey Hastings ~

Cornelius, North Carolina - About 1883 Cornelius was a small
settlement of four homes and one planked up store building

belonging to Mr. R. J. Stough, which was also used for a
cotton buying station.

At this time the community was called Liverpool because one

of the farmers got drunk and went to sleep in the cotton and
when he awoke he looked around, and seeing all the cotton,
said "Where are"? Oh yes, I am in Liverpool, England." When
cotton was sold the merchant always looked up the Liverpool
cotton prices before paying for it, Mr, Stough did not like
the idea of being tied down to a store, so he got busy and had
his friends to subsecribe stock for a cotton mill.

The brick for building the mill were made by farmers in the old
fashioned way, "mudmill," which was about 4 feet square, and was
operated by "mule power” somewhat on the order of the old-
fashioned molasses mill; the clay was loaded on wagons, and
shoveled into the mud mill; the working parts was somewhat
slmiliar to the inside of our modern ice cream freezer., Water
wvas hauled and poured into thé mudmiil] with the clay, and a
nule walked around it on the outside and mixed the mud and
vater. There was -a hole in the side of the mill near the
bottom, about the size of a "rabbit box,” where the mud afd
vater was worked to the right consistency, The exit was

opened thus forcing the mud out, which was put into molds of
the desired size. The carriers of the molds simply set their
molds under the exits to fill up, taking the top or surplus
off, then carried the newly formed brick (uswnally 4 in num-
ber) and emptied them on a farmly arranged brick-yard, where

1t could sun dry for a few days. S

In those days I seldom had any money, so I went to the brick-
yard and asked Mr. Stough to let me have the job of turning
the brick over after they had dried. After the brick were
properly sun dried, they were packed in kilns and dried with
heat from burning wood. The next move was to the present
building site, where the original mill building was built,
All the work was done by farmers and their teans,

The town was incorporated in 1905 as Cornelius, in honor of the
late J. B, Cornelius, who was one of the principal stockholders
of the mill. The earliest record of the population available
is for 1920 when the population was 1141. A report says that
in 1900 the population was 439; in 1910 it was 833; the present
population is about 2000, which does not include Smithville, a
colored settlement west of Cornelius. Four ‘hundred dwelling

houses, not incliuding the stores and shops and other business
places.
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We had a one room school taught by Miss Imma Thompson,
which was located near the present Mt., Zion Church.

Miss Thompson married R. J. Stough and they had four
sons and four daughters. Mr, Stough died in 1926 and
Mrs., Stough died inm 1953, This family along with the
Sherrills, C¢. W. Johnson, Barnetts, Washam, Howards,
Cashion, Long, Cornelius, Knox, Fidler, Beard and many
others have left an indelible impression on the communi-
.ty and may God bless them and their decendants. (J. B.
Readling) -
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Parent Teacher Association =~ Cornelius School - In the gpring
of 1215 a group of People of the Cornelius community met at
the old Cornelius School Bullding near Mount Zion Church.

Mrs. Mary Owen Graham at that time assistant county superin-
tendent of schools was invited to meet with them. The purpose
of the meeting was to organize a association that would act in
the interest of better schiools, and a better understanding be-
-tween the parents, the teachers and the children. Mrs. Graham
took charge of the meeting and the group was formally organized
as "The Betterment Association of the Cornelius School."

Mrs. Hay was elected president and Mrs. W. E. Long Vice Presi-
dent, due to the illness of Mrs, Hay, Mrs. Long served as act-
ing president, ' Z e '

Many things were accomplised by this organization. ‘Every mem-—
eb worked to help, Soon, all the school rooms were furnished
with window shades, attractive plctures were placed on the walls
and maps and books were added to the library. .

Mrs. P. A. Stough was the next president of the Betterment Assoc~
iation. It was about this time that the school was moved to the
"present site. There was much work for the Association to do
around the new building., The main Project was to beautify the
grounds., The large water oaks which now stand on the ¢campusg

were plapted along with other flowers and shrubbery close about
the building, The school had now added a Home Economics Deparg-
ment and one of the purposes of the Association was to help

equip this department in such a way that it would be of the
greatest possible service. '

For the next several vears the Assoclation was inactive. In
1924, the Assoclation was reorganized, although the name was
changed to the Parent Teacher Association, the purpdses re-
mained the same parent education, home and school cooperation
and community betterment. At the first meeting Mrs, Carl
Cashion was elected president and under her supervision the
organization moved steadily forward,

Mrs., Easom was the next president, The main project during her
term, the 1925-26 school year, was to provide and operate a
lunch room where the children were served mot lunches at the
noon hour,

Mrs. W, W. Washam followed Mrs. FEasom as President, Ahout
this time the schools were taken from under the supervision

of the county and placed in the hands of the state school
authorities. Due to this change no funds seemed to be avail-
able for the purchase of supplementary books for use, in the
schools. The PTA Purchased and placed in the school three
sets of books, All during this year the lunch roowm was opera~
ted dally, ' ‘
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During the summer of 1933 the organization was inactive., The
following fall no meeting was called and for five years there
‘was no PTA at the Cormelius School.

The year of 1938 saw the beginning of a new PTA in the communi-
ty. Three state officials, Mrs. Hunter of Charlotte, Mrs,

Rhyne of Hickory, and Mrs. Davendorf of Asheville, helped to
organize the chapter. Mrs. Hurd Q. Bradford was elected pres-
ident and served in this office for the next three years. During
these three years many worthy activities were promoted and ful-
filled by the Association., A real contribution to both the
school and the town was the beautification of the school grounds.
Flowers, trees and shrubbery were planted and a rock wall was
placed in front of the buildings., At this time, the Grade
Mother System was put into practice. Prizes were to be awarded
the room having the largest representation at PTA meetings.

In the school year 1939-40 many books were added to the library.
New shades were furnished for the auditorium and a moving pic-
‘ture machine was purchased for the use of the school. '

One of the outstanding accomplishments of the PTA at this time.
was the establishing of a cafeteria in the school building.

This enabled the children to have hot lunches served them at a
minimum cost. Money was also furnished for athletic activities.

After three years of untiring efforts, Mrs., Bradford and Mrs.

F. €. Sherrill, Jr. was elected as president for the school

year 1941-2. Early in the fall Mrs, Sherrill planned a miscell~
aneous shower for the school cafeteria. Foods, dishes, uteunsils,
and many other useful things were furnished by this shower.

The cafeteria was also enlarged. Window shades were purchasged
for the high school building, and many other activities were
planned for the remainder of the yeax. Funds for carrying on
the various programs were obtained through community channels,
such as the Halloween Carnival, chicken suppers and the town
supper. Professor H, M. Young and his corps of loval teachers
gave theilr untiring efforts and constant cooperation in every
project carried out by the PTA.

Mr. G. R, Madison served as principal of our school for one vear
from September of 1942 until the close of the school year of 1943,

During this year the PTA was active and many things were accom-
plished :

Mr., R. H. Atwell was elected president of the PTA in April of
1943 and served faithfully. The scrap drive for ironm in which
Mr. €. 0. Davis head of the Agriculture Department took a large
part, proved successful. Our school won the first prize in the
county for the largest amount of irom. This noney was used for
the benefit of the school. Mrs. W, W. Washam was Chairman when
the waste paper drives, old clothing drives, and the tin can
~drive were put on.
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Due to the pas situation the membership of the PTA had fallen
off. In September of 1943 Mr.. G. E. Smith came to our scheol
as principal. He proved to be very cooperative with the PTA.
During the past vear the PTA kept up its war relief work, do-
‘nated to help provide for cafeteria equipment and gave to Mr.
Davis for agriculture bullding warehouse and on the cannexry,
A delegate was sent to the PTA Association., A ptejector Lamp
was bought with the PTA funds, :

Mr. Atwell served as a loyal and active president for two years,
At the close of the school year Mrs. R, H. Atwell was elected

to succeed her husband as president. Mrs. C. E. Smith was
elected vice~president, Mrs. W. G. Carter, secretary, and Mr,
Harry Washam, treasurer. The membership for 1944 was 120 and
the goal set for 1945-46 was 200. Mrs. Betty Jetton was elect-
ed historian for the year 1945-46;

The year 1945-46 proved most successful in both membership and
interest in the school, . The membership was 156, the largest in
the history of the PTA. This success was due to the faithful
efforts of the membership chairman, Mrg. Carl Cashion, and the
cooperation of the teachers., Very interesting programs were given
throughout the year. The outstanding project was the finaneing
of the remodeling of the gymnasium. Partitions were made =~ .
creating private dressing rooms for the athletic teams. Running
water and rest room facilities were added, A religlous book .
shelf was added to the library, containing 42 volumes. The
community contributed generously through an offering in each
chureh to add to a fund the PTA set apart for the buying of
these books which cost around sixty-five dollars. A thousand

cans of food were collected by the school and sent to the ear
stricken countries. :

Mrs, Atwell, the president and Mrs, W. G. Carter, the secretary,
attended the PTA convention in Greensboro in May and brought baclk
interesting information. The Cornelius PTA went on record as
being a standard organization for this year. At the close of

the year Mrs. Sam Furr was elected vice president to succeed

Mre. G. E. Smith, The president, secretary and treasurer were
re-elected to serve during 1946-47, '

During this year the PTA advanced noney tao purchase 15 type-
writers for the school. The organization also bought instruc-
tional supplies for use in the elementary grades. The Halloween
Carnival also was & very successful and most enjoyable event of
the year. The money from 1t and the membetrship fees are the
main soutce of the PTA income. The membership climed to 160

by the close of the year. Mrs. Atwell served two vearsd with
untiring and loyal activity. At the Founders Day Program in
February each of the four past présidents was presented with a
nedal of distinction for loyalty and service to the Associlation.
Recipients of the medals were Mrs, H. . C. Bradford, Mrs. F. C.
Sherrxill, Jr. and Mrs, R. H. Atwell. At the close of the vyear,
Mr. Harry. Washam was elected president to succeed Mrs. Atwell,
Mrs. Msud Wilson was elected secretary, and Mrs. Thomson, trea-
BUTEr. '
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Cornelius'Electric'Membership Corporation -~ March 20, 1956, an
industry which has meant so much to rural Mecklenburg, Lincoln,
Catawba, Iredell, Gaston, Rowan, and Cabarrus counties will
‘have reached fifteen years of rapid growth. The corporation
was started with 225 members and it now has a membership of
over 3000, '

During the early part of 1939, a group of interested people,
mostly. farmers, met in the auditorium of the Cornelius High
School to see what could be done toward getting electricity
- to their homes and farms, ‘ '

Each one present had a chance to express himself, So a few
thought it could be had from the local power company, some

were sure if could not, Both sides were correct as later re-
sults showed that some could get .it, but a larger portion of
"them could not. A few had falth in the ability of rural people
to help themselves, and therefore refused to accept defeat.

An engineer was emploved to do the mapping work and a sign-up
campalgn begun. On completion of the this campaighy  Ben A,
Washam, B. §. Sherrill and J. 3. White carried it to Washington,
D. C. for approval., It received approval at once. :
Construction began in July 1940, Power was turned on in Feb-
ruary, 1941, . '

The growth 6f the corporation has been .a healthy one. Three
changes have been made in the rate structure of the eorporation,
each time the change has been a reduction, '

The formation and growth of this corporation has been of great’
benefit to many rural families who otherwise would not have
had the benefit of electricity,

The same benefits which this area is experiencing from the rural
electrification Program are also coming to communities in every

part of the nation, Over a thousand rural electric systems are

now in operation, thanks to the REA loan program and determina-

tion of the American farmers to band together for the purpose of
borrowing money to build their own rural electric lines.

It is clear from what the members of the Cormelius Electric Mem-

bership Corporation have experienced. that the rural electrifica~" .

tion program has not only raised the percentage of the nations
farms electrified from 11 PEL cent to over ninety per cent since
1935, but also has created a vast new rural market. This multi-
billion dollar market today works for a sound national economy,
benefitting Americans everywhere, '

‘The first company organized was The Cornelius Mutﬁal Corporation
with Ben A, Washam as president of board of incorporators.

-

e
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Prior to the Cornelius Mutual Corporation was the Bethel
Electric System with Ben 4. Washam President of the Board.
One year after the Cornelius Mutual Corporation was organized
it was changed to Cornelius Electric Membership Corporation,
a8 non taxable corporation at that time. Ben A. Washam then
became manager and stayed as manager until he reisgned in
July 1963 to join Duke Power Company in the Distridbutlon
Engineering Department.,
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Smith's Flowers and Nurseries Inc - The business now known as
Smith's Flowers and Nurseries, Inc., was started in January
1933 by Hugh Roy Smith and two partners. The business was
then called Cortielius Floral Gardens., Five hundred dollars
was borrowed to begin the husiness,

The first bullding was & sash greenhouse 12' by 25', Outdoor
irrigation equipment was purchased for the growing of outdoor
crops. The sash gresenhouse was used for growing bedding plants,
vegetables as well as flowers, Ten thousand rose bushes were
also planted the first Year but the market wasg poor and they

did not sell. That sanme year a cloth house was erected. Asters
were grown in this house and sold directly to retail florists

in Charlotte. At that time thete were no wholesale florist -
supply businesses in Charlotte,

In the fall of 1933 the partners pulled out of this small venture
and Mr., Smith was left aloneé, However his family, nother, father,
brothers and sisters, all provided free labo? when he had more
work than he could handle aleone. Thig invaluable help was repaid
by Mr. Smith helping with higufdther's farm work when extra help
wae needed theré, The first floral designing was done in the
basement of Mr, Smith's parents' home. .

In 1934 the name of the business was changed to Smith's Flowers.
A greenhouse 25' by 100' was built, A emall buillding was also
added to serve as an office and a flower shép. The.flowers

grown in this new greenhouse were snapdrdgons, calendula, sweet
peas, and alse normal blooming chrysanthemums. The latter ware
followed by iris and spring snapdragons., At this time vary
little could be grown in greenhouses in the summer gince tempera-

tures in the greenhouses were at least twenty per cent higher
than outdoor temperatures.

0f course, at this time, the abundance of flowers produced ecould
not bé sold retall in the small town of Cornelius. Therefore,
the surplus was sold through the first Charlotte wholesaler,
Charlotte Florist Supply, a business which was begun about the
same time that Mr. Smith buililt his shop and greenhounse,

About this time Mr. Smith was able to hire an assistant for the
greenhouse, DeAndrew Cornelius. Mr. Cornelius has been with the
business since this time, serving in many capacities. He 13 gz
most valued and coé-operative employes, '

In 1936 Mr. Smith built anothey greenhouse 30' by 150' and a
small propagating greenhouse. The géame crops were grown how-
ever, on a larger scale, In the new propagating house, 1ily

of the valley was added for the Easter season and poinsettias
~ for the Christmas season.
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In the spring of 1937 My, Smith opened a retail shop in
Mooresville which was operated by his sister Sarah. This

business was sold to Sarah in 1942, however, smithgrown
flowers were still sold.

" Mr. Smith was able to expand even in the depresssion days

because the directors of Cotnelius Savings and Loan realized
the potential of his business and were willing to loan him
the money for the addition.

Then, in 1937 disaster struck, On December .7, fire broke out
in the bioler room and quixkly consumed the small frame shaop,

- melted the glass in the greenhouses and destroyed the truek
parked in the building directly over the boiler. The plant

was not covered by insurance, however Mr., Smith's family

camé to the rescue. A brother Sam, who was in the Plumbing

and heating business in Greensboro, came with his employees

and his wife. They worked until the heating system was cpera-
ting again and some of the flowers saved from freezing. Friends
in the florist business also helped. Mr. Louis Ratcliffe took
the plants that were. not damaged to his greenhouse in Derita to
keep until repairs could be completed. Then friedds came *to
the rescue financially, wur. Frank Sherrill, Sr. and Mr, Will
Long "came to see Mr. Smith. to save their original investment
in the business (which Mr. Smith still owed) and also because.

- of their continued faith in Mr. Smith and his business and the

cotipany loaned more money to repair the greenhouses and rebuild
the shop. B

The repailring of the buildings and greenhouses was done by
Bargar Construction Company of Mooresville and was completed by
January 15, 1938, Crops were replanted 4n both greenhouses,
These plants were supplied by another frieand in the business,

" J. Van Hanford of S5alisbury. Business conditions in general

greatly improved about this time. This helped in recovery
from loss by the fire.

The business did not stand still. Mr. Smith did & small amount
of landscaping during the time. Again in 1941, another green-
house 30' by 150° was added. A headhouse 30' by 16' was also
added to the end of the shop, This aréa was used for the dis~
play of pot plants. At this time carnatlions, freeaias and
anemones were added to the flawers grown. A walk in refrigera-
tor was bullt to keep flowers conditioned., Some outdoor crops
such as gladiolus, astors, liatrus, baby's breath, dahlias, and
- redhot poker were grown in the summer., At this time Mr, Smith
with the help of his family and DeAndrew Cornelius were doing
all of the greenhouse work and the floral designing. o

In 19&4 a small apartment was added to the building for Mr.
Smith and his growing family yo live in. This made it more
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convenlent for Mr. Smith to take care of his greenhouses be-
cause the coal had to be hand shoveled into the stoker late
at night so the boiler would keep the heat up to the correct.
temperature., The thermostat also had to be checked at intexr-
- vals. BooKkeeping and billing could also be done at night,

Then in 1946 Mr. Smith felt the need to bring to his business
an experienced flower grower so he could give more time to the
growing retall business. He was able to bring to the business
C. B. Yarborough who had been the grower in the State College
Greenhouses for many years. To be able to afford a grower it
was necessary to increase the growing capacity.  Another green-
house 150' by 30' was added. A second story to the building
was also added to provide an apartment for My. Yarborough and
his family. Mrs. Yarborough also worked inm the retall shop and
assisted in the cutting and 'bunching of the flowers to be sold
by the wholesaler. .

Mr, Yarborough remained with the business for four years. During
this time out .of ‘season:chrysanthemums were added to the growing.
Mr. Yarborough was an expert snapdragon grower and during this
time snapdragons grown in Smith's greenhouses won & national
award from the Soclety of American Snapdragon Growers, Even
today snapdragons are still the number one crop in Smith's
greenhouses. The growing of bedding plants, vegetables and
flowers was also increased and became a very large part of the
spring business. : ' c

Business was good in general, During the war years Mr. Smith
turned to farming and combining wheat in addition to the flower
business, After the war was over he could devote more time to
the business. It was growing and needed more help. Mrs., Nan -
Knox came to work in the shop. She became vary expert in de-
signing and was a devoted employee until her death 4in 1960,
After her death Mrs, Hollis Reid and Mrs. Smith worked im the
shop., Mr. Smith econtinued to do landscaping when the flower
business was not at its peak.

In 1968 the shop space became too little for the amount of work
that had to -be done. So a one story addition was built, con-
taining an office, a display area and additional work areas.,
Another walk in refrigerator was added for additional storage
for the flowers until they could be shipped to Charlotte.

During the year.1960 till the present time, the nursery has
been expanded along with the flower business. Mr. Smith's two
sons, Albery and Roy, expressed a desire to become a part of
the business. They both attended the University of North ,
Carolina at Raleigh majoring in horticulture. Following grad-
uation from collége they served their country, Albert in the
Air Force and Roy in the Marines, hefore coming into the busi-
ness, Roy returned to the business in December 1967. BHis
interest is in the nursery. Albert. returned to the business in

-



Chapter 7 - Page 42
1970. His interest is 1in .the greenhouse and shop. They

both have a desire to carxry on the business that their father
began on faith nearly forty (40) years ago. '

In 1969 Larry Edwards (a former North High School math teacher)
. Yoined the business as flower grower. The following yea¥ he
joined Roy Smith to bpropagate and grow shrubs . for the growing

landscaping business., He is s most enthusiastic and energetic
addition to the business. '

The nursery grows a large vardety of shrubbery useful in hone
landscaping as well as commercial, However rhododendrons are
the main product grown. These are sold all over the South-
eastern United States. ' h

‘Rhododendron became the main shrub after 1967. That year enter-
ed a garden in the Southern Living Show. This garden won two
awards, a Sylvan Award fronm the society of American Florists

and one which was voted on by the public, Mr. Smith's garden

in 1968 was also voted by the public to be the best., His 1970
garden also won first place. These gardens all featured
rhododendrons, This showed the public Interest in this beauti-
ful shrub, _ ' -

In the f£all of 1970 the facilities for the nursery were expanded,
A metal building 40' by 60' for plant storage and potting ete

was erected. Also two propagating greenhouses 30' by 96' and

22' by 18' are located between the greenhouses and Highway 21,

In the Florist Retail Shop Mr. Smith's daughter Martha worked
- as a designer from 1965 tiil August 1970. She became quite
an accomplished floral designer. Mr. Smith happily but regret-
fully lost her to marriage in August 1970, ‘However other '
equally good designers have beconme faithful employees Mr. Larry
Foard, Mrs. Susan Penninger, Mrs. Faye Smith and Mrs. Phi Alex-
ander. Mys. Alexander is still working for us on a part time
basis as she has for many years. The business has also been
blessed with excellent office employees. Mrs. Jimmy Mayes
worked in that capaclty for many years. At present Mrs. James
Hucks is our faithful and patient bookkeeper and secretary.

Other employees other than those already mentioned have helped
to make the business a success. Some of them have advanced in
the business. One of the most renowned is Dr, Marc Cathey,

a Davidson native. He worked during his high school and college
days. After receiving a degree in horticulture from the Univer-
sity of North Carolina at Raleigh, Marc worked in our greenhouses
and retail shop in Mooresville about three years. Then he went
to Cornell University to earxn his Masters and Doctors degrees.
At present he 1e¢ in research at the Federal Research Greenhouses
in Beltsville, Maryland., His research is a great benefit to

our business. We are proud he began his career with .us.
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Other valued former employees have gone to othér Wotk,
Crawford White was a talented floral desifHéf with {s.

He 1s now a Presbyterian minister serving a échufch in
Concord. Arthur Beard, whose home was on Beattys Foard
Road, also had a degree in Horticulture and worked in our
nursery for two years., He 1s now a Presbyterian minister.
We are proud of these men and their work in the Church.

We are greatful to all our present and past employees for
their loyalty and hard work.

Mr. Smith's purpose in the work has always been to bring ‘
. beauty, pleasure and comfort into the lives of his customers

by giving the best service possible. This continues to be
the main purpose and he hopes to serve this area for many

years to come, !



Chapter 8 ~ Page 44

CIVIL WAR HISTORY - REUNION AT GORNELIUS ~ Five confederate
veterdns are honor guests at annual event in upper Mecklen~
burg ~ Spanish and World War veterans also attend gather-
ing. -

Approximately 3000 people gathered at Cornelius today to
honor the veterans who have fought for the south and the
United States in the various wars. TIn the crowd were Con-
federate, Spanish~American and World War veterans. Homor
guests were the five confederate veterans who are the re-
maining ones in this section of the vast number of Confed—
erate soldiers in whose memory the reunion was first held.

The throngs of gaily dressed merry makers strolling from
the carnival in the main par¥t of the town to the reunion
grounds at the Mt. Zion Church gave Cotnelius today the air
of a gala summer resort,.

Major A. L, Bulwinkle, ¢congressman from this district,
addressed ‘the crowd following the dinner and paid a beau-
tiful tribute to the memory of the soldiers who fought for
_the Lost Cause and urged the soldiers of later wars to
carry on in a way that would be a tribute to them, He

was introduced by Major Paul Younts, Charlotte postmaster.

The Cornelius reunion was originated 48 years ago by .
Company K of the 56th, North Carolina regiment of Infantry
C.8.4, - John Kennerly of Mooresville, who is the only liv~
-ing member of this company was present today. He says he
has not missed a reunion in all the 48 vyears they have

been held. '

" D. W. Mayes of Huntersville, who was a member of Company
K of the Third South Carolina regiment and who is now
Brigadiex General in charge of the commissary for the
Confederate veterans of the South says he doesn't rememw
ber missing a single one of the reunifons but that his son
thinks he has missed one, :

General Bhakéspear Harris of Concord, who served in Com-
pany F of the Fifth North Carolina calvary and who is now
Major General of the North Carolina veterans was one of
the honor guests, General Harris succeeded General W, A.
Smith of Ansonville, lately deceased.

Another veteran present was Col. B. B. Coltrane of Con-
cord, who served in Company I Fith Calvary North Carolina
regiment and who is now on General Harris' staff.



Chapter 8 - Page 45

Present also was George M. Lore, of Concord, Company E
72nd North Carclina regiment, a member of General Harrig' .
staff,

T. L. Shaver of Charlotte, dressed 4in his Spanish American
var uniform was the only reminder of that epoch of our hig~
tory. The pienic today was gponsored and arranged for by -
the North Mecklenburg unit of the American Legion and the
world war soldiers were well represented in the gathering.
Je R, Beard, commander of the North Mecklenburg post and
A. D. Cashion, adjutant for the post, were in charge of
arrangements.,

Seen mingling with the crowd were Ernest Grady, commander
of the Hornet's Nest Post American Legion, John Slear,
secretary to Congresaman Bulwinkle, Lester Wolfe, recent-
ly nominated clerk of court, Henry Harkey, county commi-
sstoner, Mrs, T. C. Moose, assistant adjutant of the Meck-
lenburg camp 382, Mrs. C., W. Hunt and Mrs. G. W. Link of
Charlotte. :

'Mrs{ R. J. Stough of Cornelius, as she has done for the
past 48 years was welcoming the people and looking after
the dinner, . : : '

Lt. Gen. John R. Hodge stood in line to gign the veterans
book at the 01d Soldiers Reunion in Gornelius today, just
as the other ex-servicemen who attended. flere Gen. Hedge,
who is commanding general of Fort Bragg, is signing the
book while Mrs. R. J. Stough, widow of a Confederate vet~
eran, looks on. General Hodge made the principal address
at the reunion, '

August 4, 1949 was the last reunion held.
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The Cornelius Post 0ffice was established on November 17, 1899,

Post Master

Frank C., Sherrill
Austin A. Torrence
ﬁ. Frank Harwell
John E. Baxter
Walter Blakely
Arney D. Cashion
Hattie Beatty
George E. Sweet
Gladys O, ﬁowarﬂ
Keith R, Howard

Fred 6. Torrence

Date Appointed

November 17, 1899
November 25, 1905
July 11, 1912
April 14, 1916
Febrﬁary 17, 1920
September 29; 1920
Détober 17, 1922
April 10, 1923
July 1, 1936
August 18, 1958

October 4, 1968
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Cornelius Lions Club -~ In 1952 approximately six civic minded
men in the community decided that Cornelius should have a
Lions Club, Mr. Leon Frye, Hugh R. Smith, Ben Washam, R. H.
Atwell, Sr. , Robert Hoyle and Reverend §, K. Clanton., Some

- of these men were at the time members of the Davidson Lions

Club. With the help of the Mooresville Lions Club plans were
made to form a club at Cornelius, '

The Cornelius Lions Club actually began in January 1953 and

had meetings from that time until the charter night on June

23, 1953. - The club began meeting at Mt. Zion Methodist Church
Hut and continued there for some time,

Club officers at the charter meeting were: President, Leon
Frye, First Vice-President, P. A, Alexander, Second Vice-
President, R. H, Atwell, Sr. , Third Vice-President, Hugh R,
Smith, Secretary, Joe B. Hornbuckle, Treasurer, Frank M. Blue,
Tailtwister, T. B. Fidler, Lion Tamer, H. B, Knox, Directors
James Carson, W. F. Washam, Ben M. Brown, R. E. Kennedy.

Other members were Verson Alley, John E. Baxter, Boyd Cates,
Williams V. Elliott, Robert Hoyle, Jagk Human, Vane D, Mingle,
Gordon Perry, C. B. Sperry, Conley Whaley, Luke Woods, Keith
Howard and Reverend S. K. Clanton. Honored guests ware: .
District Governoxr R. E. Kelly, District Governor Elect A. V.
Goldier, International Director John L. Stickley, and Lion

Joe Carter, President of the Mooresville Lions Club. A note
of interest here is that John L. Stickley was later elected
International President which is. the highest and most honored
office in the entire Lions organization. Lion Carter presented
the gavel to Lion President Leon Frye on behalf of the Moores~
ville Liong Club, ' : :

The club operated with approximately 36 members until the
¢losing of Frank Ix and Sons Plant 1in 1957, At that time the
club went through a set back because of the loss of membership.

By the perserverence of some devoted lions the club managed

to survive and after a period of about two years was able to
increase membership and at present time has 26 members.

In 1955 the Cornelius Lions Club began a project to raise funds
to support local and international projects. Thie project at
the time was known as the Miss North Mecklenburg Beauty Pageant.
The first queen to be crowned was Miss Nancy Deaton, daughter

of Mr. and Mrs, Willis Deaton of Cornelius, North Carolina.

This pageant began to grow and now we are in our ‘17th year. The
first year we were able to give the queen a cardboard crown and
$18.75 savings bond. We now offer many prizes as well as a
scholarship fund., Our present queen (1271-1972) is Miss Marty
Raborn, Mallard Creek Community, Charlotte, North Carolina.
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The pageant changed the name from Miss North :Mecklenburg to
Miss Mecklenburg County in 1963. The winner now goes to the
North Carolina Rhododendron Festival at Bakersville, North
Carolina. We have over the years beenm able to have one winner
at the Rhododendron Festival who was Miss Jean Rhodes; daughter
of Mr. & Mrs. Glenn Rhodes of Matthews, North Carolina. We
have alse had queens in the top five on many occasions and only
finished out only finished out of the top ten on two occasions,

Cornelius Lions are also involved in other fund raising projects
such as broom sale, bulb sale, candy sale. clock gale, fertili-
zer sale and calendar sale. The funds are used for many pur-
poses such as North Carolina Association for the Blind, White
Cane, Mecklenburg Association for the Blind, Boys Home at Hunters-—
ville and Lake Waccamaw, CARE, and loeal projects such as the
athletic and recreation program, school PTA, erecting street
markers and house numbers, annual beautification program, '
community civic sign project, instrumental in getting direct phone
service to Charlotte area. Christmas baskets and toy program,
sponsored Boy Scout troop, Camp Popwood for the blind, and many
eyes have been secured by members of the club for use at the

North Carolina Eye and Human Tissue Bank at Winston Salem.

Cornelius Lions Club is & member of the largest civic organiza-
tion in the world with membership of almost 1,000,000 in
approximately 114 countries, The purpose of our organization
is to serve our fellow man internationally, "nationally and
locally. Out motto i1s "We Serve,"



CORNELIUS JAYCEE'S HISTORY

of 21-35, The Cornelius Jaycee's were charbed Juily 156h, 1403
by the China Qrove Jaycee's o

The Jaycdee's ié'aﬁ'@rganizati@n for young men bebusen the ageisn

The Presidents of the Jaycees to the bresent Jaycee President
ars ag follows:s '

1963 = Jerry Sossamen
1904 - ¢lyde Caldwell
A0t - Carroll Clark
1966 =~ John Bustle .
1396 T.X, Robinette
196 Reid Morgan

1309 - Jack Bradforg
1970 « Phii Shook

1971 = Buteh Gllleland

S N

]

The Jaycee Organizetion iz a Cilvie Club invelved iy halplpg Lh.
- Lomunlby _to bebber $tself through Self-improvemant spojects,
The Cornelius Jaycees aye one ciub oub of 225 1n the Stabe oF
North Carolina, As of this dabe the Stabe dagess President of
Eorth GCarolina Jayoess ig Avery Nye frow Fairsini, H.o,

warrent mewbers of the Cordelius JaFcees O Dvssmier LPL i
i,  Jack Bradford ‘
2, Higk Brown

3, - Mike Bward

4, Mke Uang

5. Buben {ililleland
ve DIDUE Hybargey

s o HoOnALd Hapey

#,  Vernon knox

s Colin elly
Jusior Little
Hobty Mayhew
Rodnay Mayhew
Larey . Moreow
CPhiElin -Shook
Barpey Liag

Ly Jiemdy Whilbe

7. Jdhn Pitbman

Bo LAY Simy
Prankle #Hhise
Roonle SBrown
Puomas Goodman
BALLY Washom _
Hoanle Lowrsnce
ke Shereill
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THE JAYCEE CREED
We Beiieye
That faith in God gives meaning and purpose te human life,

That $he Brotherhood of man transcendsbﬁhe Soverelgnty of natlens,

That economic Justic can best be won by free men through free
enterprise, That government should be of laws rather than of meri,

That Earths great treasure lives in human personallty and thab
Service o humanity 1s the best werk of life, '
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FACTS OF INTEREST -

A dentist, Dr. Pilerce (red headed) practiced in Cornelius
in the early 1900's with an office over the old drugstore
above the bank.

A doctor, Mr. Hay, lived in Cornelius., He ran the local
drugetore but never practiced medicine.

The water trough was the central watering place for horses.
in the early 1900s. It was located where the old drugstore
"Guions" once was. The water trough is now at Robert
Westmorelands.

In the late 18005 there was an old tanyard behind American
Legion ball field - McCoys. '

There is a legend that "Virgin Spring" located behind the
laundry is where Cornwallis stopped and camped.

The old bafbershop in Cornelius was run by Ed Armstrong
and located above John Mayhew store. Haircuts $.15 and a
shave $.10 in the early 1900s. :

From 1908-«1910 there wﬁs an ice plant in Cornelius opera-
ted by Sid White and located where the dime store and meat
market now stand. i

Corneliug Union Furniture Company - 1908-1912., TLocated
vhere Magla 1s. In the early 1900s Ollie Little, Ross
White and Jim Harviel worked here. Allan Bustle was
killed in an aceident there. Various pieces of furniture
made here is still in homes in Cornelius. '

Overall Factory - Alec Little, Jake Smith, Roof Washam,
Lottle McConnel, Mag Lotherile worked here. It was loca~
ted top of "Star Theater'. '

Mattress Factory ~ Located across from Esso in a plank
building. In the early 1900s June Cashion worked here.

Print Bhop was operated by John SOSsomén and located be-
side the dime store (Harrills), :

There was a two story school located near Mt. Zion Church
prior to Cormelius School,



Town of Cornelius

PO Box 399

21445 Catawba Avenue
Cornelins, NC 28031

P 704 892 6031

F 704 896 2462

http:/ /wwrw.cotnelius.org
info@comelius.org

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE- CENTENNIAL COMMITTEE MEETING

Date: Match 15, 2005
CORNELIUS- The Centennial Committee will meet Tuesday, March

22" at5:00 p.m. The meeting will take placggat Town Hall and is open to the

public.
For more information on the C tal Celebration, contact Rhonda

Hollingsworth at 704.892.6031 Ext:



